
 1

Prospect Town Council 
Regular Meeting 

Unapproved Minutes 
February 2, 2016 

 
Chairman Thomas J. Galvin called to order the regular meeting of the Prospect Town 
Council @ 6:30 p.m.  The meeting was held at the Prospect Town Hall, 36 Center Street 
and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.  The meeting was taped.   
 
Members Present: T. Galvin, C. Graveline, Pat Geary, Al Delelle, S. Pilat, D. Merriman, 
Carla Perugini-Erickson @ 6:46 p.m. and L. Fitzgerald 
 
Members Absent:  Jeff Slapikas 
 
Mayor’s Report: 
Mayor Robert J. Chatfield advised of the following: 

 Mr. Jim Clynes, the Prospect Assessor will be attending the February 16, 2016 
meeting  

 The contract for Regional School District 16 was received and handed to the 
Council for review 

 A ‘draft’ of the second amendment of the contract for Municipal Solid Waste 
Disposal and Recycling Services Agreement was given to the Council for review 

 The health insurance premium for the Town increased by 6.7%  
 Marsha Lowe of Watertown CT was selected for employment as a Prospect 

Police Officer in a part-time capacity; there are approximately 17 police officers 
 
 

Mayor Chatfield advised that a tentative date of February 29, 2016 is set for the Town 
Meeting to purchase Community School.  Mayor Chatfield also stated that he had 
planned for the Council to attend the CERT team graduation this evening, but the date is 
not until later this month which he will attend. Mayor Chatfield also advised that as the 
Energy Audit from CCM will run out in July a new CCM Energy Review is forthcoming 
and Doug Merriman had expressed interest in attending.  Motion made by P. Geary, 
seconded by L. Fitzgerald for Doug Merriman to attend the CCM Energy Review 
meetings for the Town of Prospect.  Unanimous.    
 
Mayor Chatfield advised that a long time assistant to the Librarian had retired (Eleanor 
Boruch) and a new hire will be onboard.  The Mayor stated that as a search was sent out 
within the past 16 months, the Librarian will hire from this list.  A top contender is 
related to a Library Board member.  The new employee will be hired by the Librarian and 
totally independent of the Library Board. The Council saw no conflict of interest and 
advised Mayor Chatfield to call the Librarian, John Wiehn to move ahead with the hire of 
Cheryl Palen. 

 
Transfer:  Mayor Chatfield requested of the Council a transfer in the amount of 
$17,000.00 From Acct #6200 BTE Medical Benefits To Acct #7300-02 Park 



 2

Maintenance for Dredging of pond at McGrath Park.  Mayor Chatfield advised the 
Council that he had contacted the Chairman of the Board of Rec and the Director of the 
Board of Rec, Chris Moffo for an additional amount of $10,000.00 for a cumulative total 
of $27,000.00.  The Mayor stated that he will have the pond dredged as debris was 
clogging the Aerator. P. Geary raised concerns of taking the additional $10,000.00 from 
the Park and Rec Department and asked the Mayor to consider taking the entire amount 
from Acct #6200 BTE Medical Benefits. After discussion, Motion made by P. Geary, 
seconded by L. Fitzgerald to approve a transfer in the amount of $27,000.00 
From:       To: 
Acct #6200 BTE Medical Benefits Acct#7300-02 Park Maintenance for 

Dredging of pond at McGrath Park 
 
Total      $27,000.00 
6 Approved / 2 Abstained, Carl Graveline, Carla Perugini-Erickson   Motion Passes. 
 
Appointments:   
Motion made by D. Merriman, seconded by L. Fitzgerald to approve the 
recommendation by the Democratic Town Committee for Betty Bajek to fill the vacancy 
left by Frances Lamontagne on the Library Board: Term Current to 1-1-2018. 
Unanimous.   
 
Mayor Chatfield advised that he will be meeting with Attorney Yarbrough and asked P. 
Geary to attend.  The meeting will include drafting the Motion and the Resolution for the 
purchase of Community School to have at the meeting on target date 2/29/16. T. Galvin 
advised that before the Town could acquire the school, there are three conditions to be 
met:  1. Prospect Town Meeting to receive permission from the Prospect residents, 2. 
Regional School District meeting to obtain permission from both Towns to sell the 
property to Prospect and 3. Procedure to follow if Beacon Falls proceeds to stop or stall 
Prospect from obtaining the school. T. Galvin continued that he suggested to the Mayor 
to obtain a line of credit for this purchase.  Mayor Chatfield explained that he would like 
to offer a down payment from the Town’s surplus and not to finance the entire amount. 
The Mayor also requested a motion authorizing the Mayor to get funding for this 
property.  L. Fitzgerald stated that a motion was made at the January 5, 2016 meeting 
giving Mayor Chatfield authority to get this funding.  
 
S. Pilat left the meeting @ 6:56 p.m. to attend the Building Committee meeting of 
Regional School District 16.  
 
T. Galvin stated that the Region has a 1.4 million dollar surplus of which 1% may be 
used for capital projects: paving the parking lot at the new Admin offices of Region 16 on 
Coer Road, fixing the pump house at Woodland Regional High School as well as 
upgrading the 7th grade lockers at Long River Middle School to name a few.   
 
P. Geary questioned if the 6.7% increase to the health benefits included Regional School 
District 16.  Mayor Chatfield advised that the increase was for the Town and not the 
Region as the Town is a sublet to the Region and there will be no benefit change.  



 3

 
L. Fitzgerald requested of Mayor Chatfield to contact the State of Connecticut to have the 
debris picked-up from the side of the road from Cook Road down Rte 68 to the Cheshire 
line. 
 
Chair’s Report:  
Community School: Already discussed 
2016-2017 Budget Process:  T. Galvin asked the Council to consider raising the wage 
from $250.00 to $800.00 or $1,000.00 for the clerk to the Town Council for Special 
Meetings. Motion made by D. Merriman, seconded by Al Delelle to approve the increase 
of the wage of the clerk to the Town Council from $250.00 to $1,000.00 for Special 
Meetings.  Unanimous.  T. Galvin asked the Council to review the draft for the Budget.  
T. Galvin asked the Mayor to include breakdowns in areas of retiree benefits from regular 
employee benefits and a breakdown of the Public Works salary and overtime.  P. Geary 
requested to show benefits broken out with an additional line for Medicare supplemental.     
Charter Revision Commission:  T. Galvin advised that at the latest meeting of the CRC 
it was discussed that three positions should be appointed (Tax Collector, Town Clerk and 
Treasurer) with only a portion of the Commission in favor.   T. Galvin stated that the 
Town’s Tax Collector, Diane Lauber had explained at the CRC meeting, that the State of 
CT did not have qualifications for a Tax Collector position.  T. Galvin explained that 
Counsel to the CRC, John Knott, advised that once a municipality has elected officials 
they are reluctant to go to appointments.  Mayor Chatfield explained that he felt an 
elected official held more accountability than an appointed one.   
 
Guests: None 
 
Public Participation : None 
 
Approval of Minutes:   
Motion made by D. Merriman, seconded by Al Delelle to approve the minutes of January 
19 and 25, 2016. Discussion. Motion made by D. Merriman, seconded by Al Delelle to 
approve the minutes of January 19th as amended and January 25, 2016.  Unanimous. 
 
Correspondence: 
Second Amendment to:  Municipal Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling Services 
Agreement (Draft for Internal Review) 
Democratic Town Committee recommendation for vacancy on Library Board 
dated 2-2-16 
Letter from Mayor Chatfield to Chairman Galvin RE: Marsha Lowe dated 1/17/16 
Agreement Between Region 16 Education Association and Region 16 Board of Ed 
Contract Effective August 15, 2016 Expires August 14, 2019   
Draft of Legal Notice Town of Prospect Special Town Meeting and Resolution of the 
Town of Prospect, Connecticut 
Mayor’s Expenditures December 2015 
Email from Carla Erickson to Town Council Members dated 1/12/16 



 4

Motion made by C. Graveline, seconded by P. Geary to place correspondence on file.  
Unanimous. 
 
 
New Business: 
 Refunds – None 
 Transfers – Already acted upon 
 Resignations – None 
 Appointments – Already acted upon 
 Bids – None 
  Grants – None 
 
Public Participation: None 
 
Old Business:   
Ordinance Sub-Committee:  Al Delelle stated that the Ordinance Sub-committee has been 
working on the Elderly Tax Credits with consideration to modifying the Town’s 
qualifications with the State of Connecticut’s. A. Delelle also stated that they have 
received a letter from Carmody and Torrance regarding changes to the Blight Ordinance.  
Mayor Chatfield explained that he would like the Blight Commission to consider 
attaching a lien on a property instead of applying a citation.  T. Galvin suggested sending 
the correspondence from Carmody and Torrance to the Anti-Blight Commission. 
Sidewalk Task Force:  Carla Perugini-Erickson stated that the Task Force has been 
meeting and has been making progress. The members have been researching grants, 
availability of funding, costs for designing and engineering costs.  The next meeting will 
be on 2/8/16 with a guest from the EDC of Cheshire, Jerry Sitko.  C. Perugini-Erickson 
advised that a member of the Lombard Group had contacted her regarding Town specs 
for sidewalks.  Mayor Chatfield advised that he would speak with the Land Use 
Enforcement officer Tammy DeLoia to ask for her suggestions. 
 
Adjournment:  
Motion made by D. Merriman, seconded by C. Graveline to adjourn the meeting.  
Unanimous.  Meeting adjourned @ 7:33 p.m. 
 
 

Thomas J. Galvin, Chairman 
 

Rosalyn B. Moffo, Clerk 
 
  


